
BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION OF OREGON

uM 1546

THREEMILE CANYON WIND I, LLC,

Complainant,

v.

PACIFICORP, dba PACIFIC POWER,

THREEMILE CANYON'S
ANSWER TO PACIF'ICORP'S
COUNTERCLAIMS

I Threemile Canyon Wind I, LLC ("Threemile Canyon") hereby submits the following

2 Answer to the Counterclaims of PacifiCorp in this proceeding. PacifiCorp's

3 counterclaims are set forth in paragraphs 82 through 113 ofPacifiCorp's Answe¡

4 Defenses, and Counterclaims.

5 1. Paragraph 82 ofPacifiCorp's Answer states:

6
7 PacifiCorp alleges paragraphs 4,6,9, 10,25, 26,48, 54,

8 57, 61, 62, 63, 65, and 69 of thís ønswer to the extent of
9 PacifiCorp's ødmissions therein.

10 Threemile Canyon admits the allegations.
11

12 2. Paragraph 83 ofPacifiCorp's Answer states:

t3
14
15

16
17
18

19
20
27

The Commission has jurìsdiction over claims brought by
PaciJìCorp, as a public utility, against Threemile Canyon,
as an o'rwrer-operhtor ola QF, regardíng sales by
Threemile Canyon's QF to PacifiCorp in Oregon. ORS

756.500; Roats v Golfside. AIJ Ruling, UM 1248 (þn 19,

2006) ('IORS 756.500(5)] permiß a public utility or
telecomrnunícations utility to Jìle a cotnplaint agaínst any
person, so long as the matter involves the utility's ov)n
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7 rates or service."); ORS 758.505 to 555 (chørging the
2 Commissíon with adminßtering PUfuPA rates and semices
3 of public utilities).

4 Threemile Canyon admits that PacifiCorp is a 'þublic utility'' and that Threemile Canyon
5 is the owner-operator of a QF. The remaining allegations of the paragraph are

6 conclusions of law to which no response is warranted. Threemile Canyon notes,

7 however, that the decision of the ALJ in Roats l{ater System v. Golfside Investments is
8 not itself controlling authority in light ofthe subsequent decision of the Oregon Court of
9 Appeals, ,l oats Water System v. Golfsíde Investments,225 Or App 618 (2009).

10
11 3. Paragraph 84 ofPacifiCorp's Answer states:
12

13 Since June 2009, PacifiCorp has purchased all net output
14 from the Threemile Canyon QF at a point of delivery ín the
15 Dalreed load pocket near Arlington, Oregon.

16 Threemile Canyon does not know what PacifiCorp means by "near Arlington, Oregon"
17 and whether that location is intended to characterize the "point of delivery'' or the
18 "Dalreed load pocket," and therefore denies that allegation. Threemile Canyon admits
19 the remainder ofthe allegations.
20
21 4. Paragraph 85 of PacifiCorp's Answer states:

22
23 PacífiCorp purchased such Threemile Cønyon QF output
24 under the Short- Term PPA.

25 Threemile Canyon admits the allegation.
26
27 5. Paragraph 86 ofPacifiCorp's Answer states:

28
29 The Short-Terrn PPA is ín the form of PaciJìCorp's
30 Cornmission-approved standard agreement for interrnittent
3I resources with tnechanicøl avøiløble guarantee.

32 Threemile Canyon admits the allegation with the clarification that the Short-Term PPA
33 also includes an addendum (Addendum R - "Clarification of Contract Price") that is not
34 part ofthe standard agreement for intermittent resources with mechanical available
35 guarantee.
36
37 6. Paragraph 87 ofPacifiCorp's Answer states:

38
39 Pursuant to the Short-Term PPA, PacíJìCorp høs paíd
40 Threernìle Cønyon for all Threemile Canyon QF net output
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1 øt the Jìxed avoided cost príces in Schedule 37 in effect
2 June 2009.

3 Threemile Canyon lacks sufficient information regarding the truth or falsity ofthe
4 allegations, on that basis denies the aliegations, and leaves PacifiCorp to the proof
5 thereof.
6
7 7. Paragraph 88 ofPacifiCorp's Answer states:
8

9 The Jìxed avoided cost price setforth in PacifiCorp's
10 Schedule 37 is calculated with a formula prescribed by the
11 Commíssion and intended by the Commíssíon to represent
12 PaciJìCorp's avoided cost, as that term ís defined in 18
13 C.F.R. S 292.sos (2ot 1).

14 Threernile Canyon denies that "avoided cost" is defined in 18 C.F.R. ç 292.303.
l5 Threemile Canyon lacks sufficient information regarding the truth or falsity of the
16 remaining allegations, on that basis denies the allegations, and leaves PacifiCorp to the
l7 proofthereof.
18

19 8. Paragraph 89 ofPacifiCorp's Answer states:
20
21 The Schedule 37 fìxed avoíded cost price was derived
22 wíthout regard to, and makes no allowance for, third-pørty
23 tralßmíssion costs PaciJìCorp must incur to make use of
24 Excess Generation from the Threemile Canyon QF.

25 Threernile Canyon lacks sufficient information regarding the truth or falsity ofthe
26 allegations, on that basis denies the allegations, and leaves PacifiCorp to the proof
27 thereof.
28
29 9. Paragraph 90 ofPacifiCorp's Answer states:
30
31 Net output from the Threemile Canyon QF has at
32 unpredíctable tìrnes exceeded, and likely will continue to
33 exceed unpredíctably, all load served in the Dalreed load
34 pocket by up to 7.9 MW.

35 Threemile Canyon lacks sufficient information regarding the truth or falsity ofthese
36 allegations and the intended meaning of'lrnpredictable," on those grounds denies the
37 allegations, and leaves PacifiCorp to the proofthereof.
38
39 10. Paragraph 9l of PacifiCorp's Answer states:

40
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1. Excess Generatíon Events have occurred ín 2009, 2010,
2 and 2011.

3 Threemile Canyon lacks sufficient information regarding the truth or falsity ofthe
4 allegations, on that basis denies the allegations, and leaves PacifiCorp to the proof
5 thereof.
6
7 11. Paragraph 92 of PacifiCorp's Answer states:

8

9 Prìor to purchasing net output from Threemile Canyon QF,
10 PacífCorp owned no generation resource within the

11 Dalreed load pocket and controlled no transmission rights
12 for movíng power out ofthe Dalreed load pocket.

13 Threemile Canyon lacks sufficient information regarding the truth or falsity ofthis
14 allegation, on that basis denies the allegation, and leaves PacifiCorp to the proof thereof.
15

16 12. Paragraph 93 ofPacifiCorp's Answer states:

t7
18 In order to move Threetníle Canyon QF generation out of
19 the Dalreed load pocket during Excess Generation Events,
20 PacifiCorp has paid BPAfor poínt-to-point tra.nsmission
2l service (including requíred ancillary servíces) and
22 associated trawrníssíon semice applícation fees
23 (collectively "BPA Transmission Semíces").

24 Threemile Canyon lacks sufficient information regarding the truth or falsity ofthese
25 allegations, on that basis denies these allegations, and leaves PacifiCorp to the proof
26 thereof.
27
28 13. Paragraph 94 of PaciûCory's Answer states:

29
30 At present, PacifiCorp has expended over 8180,000 on
31 such BPA Transmission Services.

32 Threemile Canyon lacks sufficient information regarding the truth or falsity of this
33 allegation, on that basis denies the allegation, and leaves PacifiCorp to the proof thereof.
34
35 14. Parugaph 95 of PacifiCorp's Answer states:

36
37 Prior to PacifiCorp paying for BPA Transmission Services,

38 Threeníle Canyon was aware that PacifiCorp acquíred
39 such BPA Transrnissíon Servíces in order to provide
40 trawmission for the Threemile Canyon QF output during
4l Excess Generation Events.
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I Threemile Canyon lacks sufficient information regarding the truth or falsity ofthese
2 allegations, on that basis denies these allegations, and leaves PacifiCorp to the proof
3 thereof.
4
5 15. Paragraph 96 of PacifiCorp's Answer states:

6
7 PacífiCorp and Threemile Canyon agreed to disagree who
8 must pay for BPA transmission necessary to move Excess
9 Generatíon out ofthe Dalreed load pocket.

10 Threemile Canyon admits that in the Short-Term PPA the parties reserved their right to
I 1 dispute who would pay incremental third-party transmission costs when the Short-Term
12 PPA expires. Threemile Canyon doès not know what "agreed to disagree" is othe¡wise
13 intended to mean, and on that basis denies any other implication ofthe allegation.
14
15 16. Paragraph 97 of PacifiCorp's Answer states:

t6
17 PaciJìCorp would not have incurred the costs ofBPA
18 Trawmíssion Services íf Threemile Canyon were not
19 delívering to PacifiCorp's system at the Dalreed load
20 pocket (or another Pacifi.Corp load pocket).

21 Threemile Canyon lacks sufficient information regarding the truth or falsity ofthese
22 allegatiois, on that basis denies these allegations, and leaves PacifiCorp to the proof
23 thereof.
24
25 17. Paragraph 98 ofPacifiCorp's Answer states:

26
27 In Docket No. UM I 129, the Commission adopted standard
28 terms and conditions applicable to an investor-owned
29 utílity's purchase ofnet output from QFs with cøpacity of
30 10 MW or less.

31 Threemile Canyon admits the allegation.
32
33 18. Paragraph 99 ofPacifiCorp's Answer states:

34
35 In Docket No. UM 1129, the Comrnission did not address

36 whether a utility must bear the cost of third-party
37 transmßsion service needed to move QF output from the

38 poínt of delivery to load.

39 Threemile Canyon admits only that in UM 1129 the Commission was not expressly asked

40 to address whether a utility must bear the cost of third-party hansmission needed to move
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I QF ouÞut from the point ofdelivery to load and did not expressly address the issue, and

2 denies any further implication.
J

4 19. Paragraph 100 ofPacifiCorp's Answer states:

5

6 Oregon statutes and Commission regulatÌons do not
7 expressly require PacifiCorp to pay the cost of third'party
8 transmíssion service required to move QF output from the

9 poínt of delivery to load.

10 Threemile Canyon admits that no Oregon statute or Commission regulations contains an

11 "express" requirement that PacifiCorp must "pay the cost ofthird-party transmission
12 service required to move QF ouþut from the point ofdelivery to load" and Threemile
13 Canyon denies any implication that Threemile Canyon therefore is legally required to pay
14 such costs.
15

16 20. Paragraph 101 ofPacifiCorp's Answer states:

17
18 Pacifi.Corp's Schedule j7 tariff does not expressly requíre
19 PacífiCorp to pay the cost of thírd-party trønsmíssion
20 semice required to move QF output from the point of
2l delivery to load.

22 Threemile Canyon admits that Schedule 37 contains no "express" requirement that
23 PacifiCorp must'þay the cost of third-party transmission sewice required to move QF
24 output fiom the point ofdelivery to load" and Threemile Canyon denies any implication
25 that Threemile Canyon therefore is legally required to pay such costs.

26
27 21.. Paragraph 102 of PacifiCorp's Answer states:

28
29 The Short-Term PPA does not expressly allocate third-
30 parô) transrnission costs PacífiCorp trutst incur to make use

31 of Excess Generøtion from the Threemile Canyon QF.

32 Threemile Canyon admits that the Short-Term PPA does not expressly allocate third-
33 party transmission costs, and Threemile Canyon denies any implication that PacifiCorp
34 therefore contains no "express" requirement that PacifiCorp must 'þay the cost of third-
3 5 party transmission service required to move QF output from the point of delivery to load"
36 and Threemile Canyon denies any implication that Threemile Canyon therefore is legally
37 required to pay such costs.
38
39 22. Paragraph i03 ofPacifiCorp's A¡swer states:

40
41 Under PUfuPA, the maxitnutn rate that 4 utílity cdn be

42 requíred to pay þr QF output is the utilíty's avoided cost.
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7 American Paper Institute, Inc. v. American Elec. Power
2 Serv. Corp.. 461 U.S. 402,413 (1983); Connecticut Lísht
3 & Power Co.. 70 FERC n il,012 Q995). In other words,
4 PURPA requíres that the utìlity and íts retaíl customers be
5 indffirent or neutrøl to the transoction (the "ratepayer
6 neutrality principle").

7 The allegations are conclusions oflaw to which no response is required.
8
9 23. Paragraph 104 ofPacifiCorp's Answer states:

10
11 In Docket No. UM 1401 (Order No. 10-132,7) and in
12 Docket No. AR 521 (Order No. 09-196, 5), the Commission
13 concluded that QFs must pay for system upgrades required
14 to mítigate any adverse system impdcts resulting frorn the
15 QF interconnection.

16 The allegations state conclusions of law which do not require response. To the extent the
l7 allegations purport to factually summarize Commission Orders, Threemile Canyon denies
18 the allegations on the grounds that the Commission's Orders speak for themselves.
19 Threemile Caayon further denies any implication that Docket No. UM 1401 or Order No.
20 10-132 are applicable to the Threemile Canyon QF. Threemile Canyon further denies
2l any implication that intercoririection costs, which PacifiCorp admits Threemile Canyon
22 has paid in full under the terms of the Distribution Generator lnterconnection Agreement
23 (PacifìCorp's Answer, Defenses and Counterclaims, para. 28), are at issue in this
24 proceeding.
25
26 24. Paragraph 105 ofPacifiCorp's Answer states:
)1
28 The Cotnmission's approach ín Docket No. UM 1401 and
29 Doclæt No. AR 521 reflects a policy determínation thdt
30 (consistent with PURPA's ratepøyer-neutral¡ty principle) a
31 QF must bear those costs thøt øre directly associated with
32 íts ínterconnection.

33 The allegations state conclusions oflaw which do not require response.
34 To the extent the allegations purport to factually summarize Commission
35 Orders, Threemile Canyon denies the allegations on the grounds that the
36 Commission's Orders speak for thernselves. Threemile Canyon further
37 denies any implication that Docket No. UM 1401 is applicable to the
38 Threemile Canyon QF. Threemile Canyon further denies any implication
39 that interconnection costs, which PacifiCorp admits Threemile Canyon has
40 paid in full under the terms of the Distribution Generator Interconnection
4l Agreement (PacifiCorp's Answer, Defenses and Counterclaims, para. 28),
42 are at issue in this proceeding.
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1 25. Paragraph 106 ofPacifiCorp's Answer states:
2
3 Thís conclusion ewured that utilitíes and their retail
4 customers are not required to pay nxore than avoíded cost
5 and therefore remaín índffirent to the transaction.

6 The allegations state conclusions of law which do not require response. To the extent the
7 allegations purport to factually summarize Commission Orders, Threemile Canyon denies

8 the allegations on the grounds that the Commission's Orders speak for themselves.
9 Threemile Canyon further denies any implication that Docket No. UM 1401 is applicable

10 to the Threemile Canyon QF. Threemile Canyon further denies any implication that
I 1 interconnection costs, which PacifiCorp admits Threemiie Canyon has paid in full under
12 the terms of the Distribution Generator Interconnection Agreement (PacifiCorp's
13 Answer, Defenses and Counterclaims, para. 28), are at issue in this proceeding.
t4
15 26. Paragraph 107 ofPacifiCorp's Answer states:
16
17 Applying the policy dßcussed above to the question of who
18 must pay for third-party transmission requíred to move QF
19 output to load, the Commíssion cøn and should conclude
20 that QFs are requíred to bear such costs.

2l Threemile Canyon denies any implication in this allegation that the Commission can or
22 should in this proceeding be determining policy with respect to QFs generally. Threemile
23 Canyon denies that the Commission can or should require Threemile Canyon to bear the
24 costs of third-party transmission incurred by PacifiCorp with respect to Excess
25 Generation Events for the Threemile Canyon QF.
26
27 27. Paragraph 108 of PacifiCorp's Answer states:

28
29 PacifiCorp re-alleges paragraphs 98-103.

30 Threemile Canyon incorporates by reference its responses to paragraphs 98-103 of
3 1 PacifiCorp's Answer.
32
33 28. Paragraph 109 ofPacifiCorp's Answer states:

34
35 The Short-Term PPA requíres PaciJìCorp to purchase all
36 net output from the Threemile Canyon QF or else default
37 on the Short-Term PPA, even during an Excess Generation
38 Event.

39 Threemile Canyon admits the allegations.
40
41 29. Paragraph 110 of PacifiCorp's Answer states:
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1

2 The Short-Term PPA makes no allowance for third-party
3 transtnission cosß PacíJìCorp nust incur to make use of
4 Excess Generatíon from the Threemile Cønyon QF.

5 To the extent the allegation is a legal conclusion based on the terms ofthe Short-Term
6 PPA, it requires no response. To the extent it is a factual allegation, Threemile Canyon
7 does not know what PacifiCorp means by "makes no allowance" and denies the
8 allegation as unduly vague.
9

10 30. Paragraph 111 ofPacifiCorp's Answer states:
11

12 When PacifiCorp pays Threemile Canyon the Schedule 37
13 fixed avoided cost rate for net output from the Threemile
14 Canyon QF and also pays for BPA Transmission Services
15 necessary to move Excess Generatíon to a place on
16 PaciJìCorp's system where it can be used to serve load,
17 PacifiCorp ís paying tnore than its avoíded costfor
18 Threerníle Canyon QF net output.

19 Threernile Canyon admits that any payments made by PacifiCorp to BPA for
20 transmission services are in addition to any payments to Threemile Canyon for the ouþut
21 ofthe QF under the terms of Schedule 37. Threemile Canyon otherwise denies the
22 allegations.
)7
24 31. Paragraph 112 ofPacifiCorp's Answer states:
25
26 Threemile Canyon's refusal to pay for BPA Transmission
27 Servíces necessary to move Excess Generation to a place
28 on PacifiCorp's system where it can be tned to serve load
29 violates Section 210þ) of PURPA Q6 U.S.C. 824a-3þ)),
30 18 C.F.R. $ 292.30a@)Q), Connecticut Lieht & Poluer Co..
31 70 FERC 61,012 (1995), and Oregon's implementation of
32 PUfuPA in ORS 758.505 to 758.555, Divßion 29 of the
33 Commission's administrative rules, relevant Commìssion
34 orders, and PaciJìCorp's Schedule 37 by requíríng
35 PacifiCorp to pay more than avoided costs for Threernile
36 Canyon QF net ouþu|.

37 The allegation is a conclusion oflaw to which no response is required.
38
39 32. Paragraph 113 ofPacifiCorp's Answer states:

40
4l WHEREFORI PacifiCorp seeks an order frotn the
42 Commission:
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I

)
3

4
5

6
7
8
9

10
11

12

a) Declaring that:

I . Threemile Canyon must pay for third-party transmíssíon
(including ancíllary servìces) necessdry to move Excess
Generationfrom Dalreed substation to a useful destination
on PacífiCorp's system under the Short-Term PPA; and

2. Threemile Canyon must pay for third-party I
transmìssion (including ancillary senices) necessary to
move Excess Generation from Dalreed substation to a
useful destination on PacifiCorp's systenx under any
subsequent PPA between the parties regarding the
Threenile Canyon QF ín the fonn of Paci/ìCorp's current
Cornmissíon-approved standard fonn PPA; and

3. PacífiCorp is authorized to deduct over a reasonable
period of time from any future payments Íor net output from
the Threemile Canyon QF the actudl payments PacifiCorp
has made to date and payments PaciJìCorp makes to BPA
pendíng final resolutíon of thís complaínt for the purpose of
purchasíng the BPA Transmíssion Semices identífied in
paragraphs 93 and 94 (all in a sum to be proved and ín
excess of 6180,000) and ínterest thereon.

b) Or alternatively, declaríng that:

L The Short-Term PPA violates the requìrement ín Section
210þ) of PURPA that a utìlity not be requíred to pay for
QF ou@ut at a rate in excess of the utility's avoided cost
and therefore the Short-Term PPA is void ab ínitio; and

2, Threemile Canyon must refund the actual payments
PacífiCorp has rnade to date and payments PaciJìCorp
makes to BPA pending final resolutíon of this complaint for
the purpose ofpurchasíng BPA Transmission Services
identífied in paragraphs 93 and 94 (all ín a sum to be
proved and in excess of 6180,000) and interest thereon.

c) And, any other relief the Cotnmission deem.s appropríate.

Threemile Canyon denies that the Commission should grant the relief requested by
PacifiCorp.

13

1,4

l5
16
17

18

t9
20

21

22
23
24
25

26
27

'28
29
30
31

32

55
34
35
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2

3

4
5

6

7
8

9
10
11

T2

1 Respecttullysubmittedthis {-O^r"

101 SW Main Street, Suite 1100
Portland, OR 97204
Telephone: (503) 228-2525
Email Address: rallan@bjllp.com
Of Attomeys for Complainant,
Threemile Canyon Wind I, LLC
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CERTIF'ICATE OF FILING
ø+\

I hereby certifr that on August Þ . 2011, I filed the foregoing THREEMILE CANYON'S

ANSV/ER TO PACIFICORP'S COUNTERCLAIMS (Case UM 1546) with the Public Utility

Commission; Att'n Filing Center, by electronic transmission and mailed the original and five

copies to the Public Utility Commission, Att'n. Filing Center, 550 Capitol Street NE, No. 215,

P.O. Box 2148, Saløn, Oregon

Richard H. Allan, OSB #881477
Of Attomeys for Complainant
Threemile Canyon Wind 1, LLC

CERTIFICATE OF' SERVICE
14^

IherebycertifuthatonAugustð.20li,Iservedatrueandcorrectcopyoftheforegoing

THREEMILE CANYON'S ANSWER TO PACIFICORP'S COUNTERCLAIMS (Case UM

1546) by electronic transmission and by first-class mail on the following individuals:

Pacifi Corp Oregon Dockets Jeffrey S. Lovinger
825 NE Multnomah Street, Suite 2000 Kenneth E. Kauftnann
Portland, OR 97932
oregon.dockets@pacifi corp.com

Jordan A. White
Legal Counsel

Lovinger & Kaufrnann
825 NE. Multnomah, Suite 925
Portland, OR 97232
lovinger@lklaw.com
kaufrnann@lklaw.com

1,407 W . North Temple, Suite
SaltLakeCit¡UT 84116
jordan.white@pacifi corp.com
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By:
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H. Allan, OSB #881477
Of Attomeys for Complainant
Threemile Canyon Wind l, LLC
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